
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

October 24, 2017 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Oct 24 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 24 
immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 24 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 24 
immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 14 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Nov 14 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
Nov 21 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 
 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

D. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 
Central High School 

Memorial High School 
 

E. SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
Center of Excellence in Leadership of Learning (CELL) Endorsements 

 

F. MINUTES  -   October 10, 2017 – Public Work Session 
October 10, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
October 17, 2017 – Public Work Session 
 

G. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 

 
 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 

 
 Financial Report – January 1, 2017 – September 30, 2017 

 

 2018 Budget Adoption – The Business Office recommends Board approval 
of the proposed 2018 Budget, 2018 Capital Projects Fund Plan, and 2018 
School Bus Replacement Plan, and other required budget resolutions. 

 
 Employers Health/CVS Agreements 

REVISED 

October 20, 2017 



BOARD AGENDA October 24, 2017 
 
 

2 
   

 Extra-Curricular Purchase - The Business Office seeks Board approval of an 
extra-curricular purchase request. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

 Monthly Insurance Update 
 

 Award of Commissary Bid –The Business Office recommends Board approval 
of the bid award for the 2017-18 Addition to Commissary Building. 
 

H. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 Administrative Regulation IKE – The administration presents Administrative 

Regulation IKE – Retention of Students in Grades K – 8, with revisions from 
the initial presentation at the September 26th regular Board meeting. 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 3422.12S Employees in Miscellaneous Positions Compensation 
Plan - The administration presents proposed revisions to Board Policy 

3422.12S Employees in Miscellaneous Positions Compensation Plan and 
asks to waive 2nd reading. 
 

 New Course Offerings – The administration presents two new proposed 
course offerings for Board review. 
 

 Administrative Conflict of Interest – Elkhart Community School’s 

administrator discloses a potential conflict of interest statement. 
 

 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of 

overnight trip requests. 
 

 Grants – The administration seeks Board approval for the submission of 

grants as recommended by the administration. 
 

J. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended 
by the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 
 

K. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 
 

L. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

October 10, 2017 
 

Mary Daly Elementary School, 1735 Strong Avenue, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Karen S. Carter Rodney Dale 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Glenn Duncan 
  Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
   
Absent: Susan C. Daiber  
   
ECS Personnel Present: Rob Haworth Kevin Scott 
 Sara Jackowiak Kristie Stutsman 
 Dawn McGrath  
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard School Improvement Plans for North Side Middle School from 
Sara Jackowiak and for West Side Middle School from Kristie Stutsman.  Reports 
were given on the recent Indiana School Board Association conference in 
Indianapolis and the Apple briefing in California attended by administrators.   
 
The Board also discussed agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 
 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:45 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

October 10, 2017 

 
Mary Daly Elementary School, 1735 Strong Avenue, Elkhart – at  

7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Karen S. Carter Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Douglas K. Weaver Glenn L. Duncan 

  Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 

   

Absent Susan C. Daiber  

   
 

Roll Call 

Vice President Karen Carter called the regular meeting of the Board of 
School Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 

 

Call to 
Order 

Board member Carolyn Morris recited the Elkhart Promise. The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mrs. Carter discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 

 

 

Jeff Komins, energy education specialist/elementary activities, reported 
on the building audit performed on Monday, October 10th at Mary Daly 

Elementary School at 4:50 a.m.  Mr. Komins reported 66% of the 47 
areas checked were in compliance and received “Thanks for Saving 
Energy” stickers.  Daly’s cost avoidance is $13,162 through August.  The 

district’s cost avoidance for the year through August is $983,192 and 
could possibly exceed $1.3 million this calendar year. 
 

Energy Report 
 

Josh Nice, principal at Mary Daly Elementary, presented an overview of 
activities at Daly.  Mr. Nice and Carolyn Lesperance, assistant principal, 
reported Daly students attained the highest percentage of third graders’ 

growth in the district on NWEA, and received 95.6 of 100 possible 
growth points on ISTEP+.  Daly’s school improvement plan focuses on 
reading growth in Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA) and writing 

growth on rubrics.  The Daly Pledge was rewritten to incorporate all 
aspects of P.R.I.D.E. Program highlights included: trips to Kercher’s for 
agricultural studies; job fair and career studies; the Daly dash and block 

party including the build-up to the event with the run club; All Pro Dads 
and iMoms breakfasts; and promoting a love of literacy.  Mr. Nice 
congratulated his staff on their dedication to the students and their 

families. 
 

Building Report 

  



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
September 21, 2017 – Joint City/Public Work Session 

September 26, 2017 – Public Work Session 
September 26, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$3,551,164.96 as shown on the October 10, 2017, claims listing.  
(Codified File 1718-41) 

 

Payment of 
Claims 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS): $250.00 in school 

supplies and $680.00 to Memorial High School’s (MHS) special education 
intense program from Dr. Mark Lindholm of Natural Health Family 
Chiropractic; $200.00 to Eastwood from Trinity United Methodist Women 

to help with supplies needed by the nurse; $1,000.00 to Central High 
School’s (CHS) wrestling team from C&K Manufacturing; 22 LED light 
fixtures for the library at Monger from BABSCO; and $350.00 from 

Northern Indiana Volleyball Association (NIVA) to Eastwood for their 
volleyball program. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

Mrs. Carter opened the public hearing on the proposed 2018 Budget, 
Capital Projects and Bus Replacement Plans, with no comments from the 

audience; the hearing was closed. 
 

Public Hearing 
 

An audience member spoke in regards to the number of busses on the 

south side of Elkhart and concern for young children walking to school 
and their safety.  After some discussion, it was noted the concerns 
would be reviewed by staff. 

 

From the 

Audience 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 

activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1718-42) 
 

Fundraisers 

Counselors from both high schools, Sarah Flagg, Michelle Kessler and 
Regina Roberson, gave a presentation on school counseling services.  
Advisory services include: college and career information, career 

pathways, career exploration, character building through PRIDE, 
journals, grade checks, and scheduling through Naviance software.  The 
same directives are being used at both high schools. 

 

College and 
Career 
Readiness 

Presentation 
 

  



3 
 

Levon Johnson, supervisor of corporate/community partnerships, 
presented an update on partnership activities.  Manufacturing day was a 

big success with 34 businesses hosting 869 eight graders.  346 Central 
seniors participated with Beacon, Genesis, Patrick Industries and Thor 
human resource departments to learn resume building, interview 

processes, and the importance of benefits along with wages.  Thor has 
hosted 455 elementary students for on-site field trips.  Move2Stand had 
255 students participating this year.  103 Memorial students worked 

with Agdia taking samples at the Farm.  In the month of October, 1,773 
students interacted with partnering businesses.  Mr. Johnson reported 
on the programs receiving Teachers’ Credit Union donations.  The Work 

Ethic Certification program has 107 ECS students and 350 students 
countywide.  At future Board meetings, Mr. Johnson will introduce 
representatives of partnering businesses.   

 

Business 
Partnerships 

Report 
 

Dee Wappes, director of assessment & data, reviewed the 2017 
Accountability Grades.  Mrs. Wappes presented statistics on the 

accountability grades, ISTEP+ passing and NWEA growth percentages by 
school.  Mrs. Wappes explained the formula used for accountability 
grades and the increase of growth points for various schools, as well as 

long-term goals for overall improvement. 
 

Data & 
Assessment 

Report 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an alternative residential 
services agreement for an Elkhart Community Schools’ student.  
(Codified Files 1718-43) 

Residential 
Services 
Agreement 

 
The Board received information on a new course offering for the 2017-
2018 school year in accordance with Board policy.  The new course is 

Fiber Arts/4046. (Codified File 1718-44) 

New Course 
Offering 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an overnight trip request for 
the Central marching band to travel to Indianapolis on October 20 and 

21 to compete at the Bands of America Indianapolis Super Regional 
Championship at Lucas Oil Stadium. 
 

Overnight Trip 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of the 
following grants:  Potawatomi Zoo Grant to Target in the amount of 
$812.00 from Mary Beck; Indiana Literacy Early Intervention Grant to 

Indiana Department of Education (IDOE) in the amount of $61,726.50 
for ECS; School Bus Replacement and Retrofit Rebate to Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) for $15,000 - $20,000 per eligible bus purchase 

for ECS; Elkhart Culture Series: Art Café to Elkhart Community 
Foundation in the amount of $10,000 for ECS; and Title I School 
Improvement Grants to IDOE in the amount of $500,000 each for Mary 

Daly and Roosevelt.  (Codified File 1718-45) 
 

Grant 
Approvals 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 

accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the September 26, 2017 listings. (Codified File 1718-
46) 

Conference 

Leaves 



4 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 
recommendations of the administration: 

Personnel 
Report 

Agreements regarding unpaid time for two (2) certified staff 
members. (Codified Files 1718-47) 
 

Consent 
Agreements 

Resignation of certified staff member, Elizabeth DeMeester, grade 3 
at Roosevelt, 10/18/17. 

Certified 
Resignation 
 

Change to maternity leave for certified staff member, Kaylie 
Dvorak, grade 1 at Beardsley, beginning 9/29/17 and ending 
6/6/18. 

 

Maternity 
Leave 
 

The passing of certified staff member Judith Bridges, dental health 

at EACC, on October 1st. 
 

 

Notice of 

Passing 
 

Employment of the following five (5) classified employees who have 
successfully completed their probationary period on dates 

indicated: 
Jacqie Abbott - paraprofessional at EACC, 9/21/17 
Kierilee James - bus driver at Transportation, 9/18/17 

Amanda O’Brien - secretary at ESC, 10/3/17 
Betty Sterling - bus helper at Transportation, 9/26/17 
Meghan Sutton - secretary at Eastwood, 9/26/17 

 

Classified 
Employment 

 

Resignation of the following three (3) classified employees effective 

on the dates indicated: 
Robin Creer - bus driver at Transportation, 10/6/17 
Kelly Martin Del Campo - food service at North Side, 9/22/17 

Morgan Winters - food service at North Side, 9/22/17 
 

Classified 

Resignation 
 

Rescinded the resignation of classified employee, Darci Koch, food 

service at Roosevelt, 9/7/17. 
 

Rescind 

Resignation 

Retirement of classified employee, Darci Koch, food service at 
Roosevelt, 9/7/17, with 12 years of service. 
 

Classified 
Retirement 

Unpaid leave for classified employee, Jeffrey DeCook, support tech 
I at Technology Services, beginning 10/31/17 and ending 
11/10/17. 

 

Unpaid Leave 

Termination of classified employee, Hannah Duncan, 
paraprofessional at Pierre Moran, 8/17/17, in accordance with 

Board Policy 3139.01S. 
 

Classified 
Terminations 

 

Board Vice President, Karen Carter, reported on the Board members’ 

recent trip to Indianapolis for the Indiana School Board Association’s 
annual conference and the variety of sessions available to attend.  Two 
of her choices included cyber-security and audits. 

 

From the Board 



5 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:35 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

October 17, 2017 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart –  
11:00 a.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Carolyn R. Morris 
 Douglas K. Weaver Jeri E. Stahr 
   
Absent:  Glenn Duncan 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Cary Anderson Kevin Scott 
 Tony England Frank Serge 
 Tony Gianesi Doug Thorne 
 Rob Haworth Tara White 
 Dawn McGrath  
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard presentations and discussed the following topics: high school 
scheduling for the 2018-2019 school year; the literacy program; a financial 
review of summer school and adult/community education; building projects; and 
suggestions for additional programming. 
 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 3:00 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  10/06/2017 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

FROM:  Barbara Cripe, Principal of Riverview School 

RE:  Donation Approval 

Through their work with Trinity United Methodist Church-Small Groups, Martin Alig and Nancy 
Alig have given Riverview School a generous donation of $100.00.  This money will be deposited 
into the Riverview extra-curricular account which is used to purchase items directly impacting 
students.  We are very grateful to the Aligs for their generosity to Riverview. 
 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

 Mr. Martin Alig and Mrs. Nancy Alig 
 1 St. Joseph Manor 
 Elkhart, IN  46516 



] 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  October 10, 2017 
 
TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
FROM: Tonda Hines, 21st Century Program Manager 
 
RE:  Donation Acceptance 
 
 
 A donation of 5 cases of healthy snacks was given to Roosevelt STEAM Academy and 
Pierre Moran Middle School for students who participate in the 21st Century Community 
Learning Center Before/After School Program.  The donation will be given on a monthly 
basis.   
 
Roosevelt STEAM Academy/Pierre Moran Middle School sent a note of thanks as well. 
 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and 
that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 
 
 The Snack Box-Phillip Shank 

23900 Mira Ct.  
 Elkhart, IN  46516 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
DATE:  October 10, 2017 
 
TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 
 
FROM:  Tessa Sutton, Supervisor of Connective Leadership & Inclusion 
 
RE:  Donation Approval 
 
A cash donation in the amount of $500.00 from Old National Bank, Fort Wayne, Indiana.  The funds will 
be used to engage staff, students, and community in cultural experiences that expand the value of 
diversity and inclusion in schools, community, and among all employees. 
 
I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 
appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 
 
 Old National Bank - Alex Strati and Emily Wissel 
 130 S. Main St., Suite 100 
 Mishawaka, IN 46601 
 



PETTY CASH $ 500.00                     

GENERAL ACCOUNTS:                      

     Lake City Bank 13,786,130.52          

     Lake City Bank – Merchant Account                                              -                           

     Teachers Credit Union                                                           2,915,045.85            

     BMO Harris Bank (UMR insurance) 407,420.00               

SCHOOL LUNCH ACCOUNTS:
     Lake City Bank - Prepaid Lunch                                                                       270,064.41               

     Change Fund            2,010.00                  

TEXTBOOK RENTAL ACCOUNTS:

     Chase Bank 1,598,894.32            

PAYROLL ACCOUNTS:

     Lake City Bank – Payroll Account                                        -                           

     Lake City Bank – Flex Account                                                  62,062.23                

     

INVESTMENTS:

     Certificate of Deposit  -                           

                                                                                                                            

ACCOUNT BALANCES/INVESTMENT DETAIL

September 2017

19,042,127.3319,042,127.3319,042,127.3319,042,127.33$         $         $         $             

2





















 
INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 
 
 To:  Board of School Trustees 
 
  Rob Haworth 
  Superintendent 
  
From:  W. Douglas Thorne 
  District Counsel/Chief of Staff 
 
Date:  October 20, 2017 

 

Re:  Prescription Drug Management Services 
 
In July, Elkhart Community Schools’ administration requested proposals for prescription drug 
management services from eleven organizations that provide such services to employers; eight 
companies submitted proposals which were reviewed by the district’s Insurance Committee. 

Our prescription drug benefits are currently managed by Optum, an affiliate of UMR, which is the 
administrator of our health benefit plan. 

Subsequent to the review of the proposals, the Administration and Insurance Committee recommended 
we enter into an agreement with CVS/Caremark, offered to Elkhart Community Schools through a 
membership with the Employers’ Health Coalition.  This proposal will result in significant savings on 
prescription drugs with minimal disruption for plan members and their dependents. 

The Administration will be seeking the authority to accept this proposal during your meeting on October 
24, 2017. 

Should you have any questions, please contact Mr. Kevin Scott or myself. 

WDT/dls 

 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Haworth 

  Board of school trustees 

   

From: Dr. Robert Woods 

 
Date:  October 19, 2017 

 

Subject/  extra curricular purchase 

The Business Office recommends Board approval of purchase of the following items from 
extra-curricular funds: 
 
SCHOOL/ACCOUNT       ITEM           AMOUNT 

 
 

West Side Athletic Department         Shooting Shirts and                         $3,295.00 

                                                              Travel Attire for boys 

                                                              basketball program                

                                                              A & B Teams 

                           

  

       

       

 

       

        

 

 

 

 

 













j.lakej.lake
JAMIE LAKE

ARCHITECTURE & DESIGNj.lakej.lake
JAMIE LAKE

ARCHITECTURE & DESIGN

502.802.8797       jamie.lake@jlakearch.com      129 Quartermaster Court    Jeffersonville, IN 47130

October 18, 2017 

Tony Gianesi, Chief Operating Officer   
Elkhart Community Schools     
2720 California Road       
Elkhart, IN 46514 
574.262.5563 p 
574.262.5565 f 
tgianesi@elkhart.k12.in.us 

Project:  2017-18 ADDITION 
  COMMISSARY BUILDING 
  Elkhart Memorial High School 
  2608 California Road 
  Elkhart, IN 46514 

Dear Tony, 

Bids were received at the J.C. Rice Educational Services Center at 2:00 PM on Tuesday, October 18, 
2017 for the above-referenced project, at which time they were opened and publicly and read aloud.  

Three (3) bids were received. 
All bids submitted were received and logged in prior to the required bid opening time. 
A hard copy of all original bid information received was given to Bill Drehmel at the bid opening for your 
official project files and records. 
I retained the duplicate copy of the proposal forms and information for further review and scanning.  
No financial statements or financial records have been scanned or retained by our office. 

I have reviewed the bid information submitted and the proposal requirements for bidding. 
To the best of my knowledge and abilities, all bids appear to be responsive and complete.  

I believe irregularities exists with the proposal from Brown and Brown in which they did not submit the 
separate attachment forms for both the Allowances and the Alternates. 
However, they have provided a listing of all alternates on the main proposal form, which has been 
notarized, with pricing provided for all alternates. In addition, they have confirmed the contingency 
allowance is included within their base bid, which is the sole purpose of the allowance form. 
I have no issues with these irregularities and am satisfied with the information as presented.  

Registered Architect:  Indiana #19900007 • Kentucky #5066 • NCARB #51592 
Registered Interior Designer: Indiana #00411 
Professional Affiliations: American Institute of Architects #30121121 • Construction Specifications Institute #1194282          PAGE !                   1

mailto:jamie.lake@jlakearch.com
mailto:tgianesi@elkhart.k12.in.us


j.lakej.lake
JAMIE LAKE

ARCHITECTURE & DESIGNj.lakej.lake
JAMIE LAKE

ARCHITECTURE & DESIGN

502.802.8797       jamie.lake@jlakearch.com      129 Quartermaster Court    Jeffersonville, IN 47130

It is my recommendation to award the Contract for Construction to  
Brown and Brown General Contractors, Inc. of Wakarusa, Indiana,  
as the “lowest and most responsive and responsible bid”.  

As discussed with you today, I would recommend acceptance as follows: 
$1,116,000  Base Bid  
$    30,700   Alternate 1A  
$    11,700   Alternate 2 
$      1,800   Alternate 3  
$1,160,200  Total Contract Sum 
 

Sincerely, 

Jamie Lake, AIA 
President / CEO 

Enclosed: (1) Bid Tabulation, (1) Contingency Allowance Confirmation 

File:  17-01-03/P3-E 

Registered Architect:  Indiana #19900007 • Kentucky #5066 • NCARB #51592 
Registered Interior Designer: Indiana #00411 
Professional Affiliations: American Institute of Architects #30121121 • Construction Specifications Institute #1194282          PAGE !                   2

j.lakej.lake

mailto:jamie.lake@jlakearch.com




j.lakej.lake
JAMIE LAKE

ARCHITECTURE & DESIGNj.lakej.lake
JAMIE LAKE

ARCHITECTURE & DESIGN

                  Project: 2017-18 ADDITION 
                    COMMISSARY BUILDING 
                    Elkhart Memorial High School 
                    2608 California Road 
                    Elkhart, IN 46514 

                  Project No: 17-01-03 

                  Date:  October 18, 2017 
                  Time:  2:00 PM 
                  Location: J. C. Rice Educational Services Center 
502.802.8797       jamie.lake@jlakearch.com      129 Quartermaster Court    Jeffersonville, IN 47130 

!
BID TABULATION FORM

File: 17-01-03/P3-E

BIDDER BASE BID ALTERNATE NO. 1A
Building Controls

Two-Cubed Solutions

ALTERNATE NO. 1B
Building Controls

Innovative Control Systems

ALTERNATE NO. 2
Replace Existing Lighting

ALTERNATE NO. 3
Fabric Awnings

BROWN AND BROWN 
GENERAL CONTRACTORS, INC.

1,116,000.00 30,700.00 19,400.00 11,700.00 1,800.00

GIBSON-LEWIS, LLC 1,248,700.00 28,700.00 18,300.00 11,000.00 6,000.00

R. YODER CONSTRUCTION, INC. 1,154,000.00 31,700.00 20,000.00 12,100.00 1,955.00

Registered Architect:  Indiana #19900007 • Kentucky #5066 • NCARB #51592 
Registered Interior Designer: Indiana #00411 
Professional Affiliations: American Institute of Architects #30121121 • Construction Specifications Institute #1194282

mailto:jamie.lake@jlakearch.com


IKE 
Proposed Revised 

(with revisions discussed during the 9/26/17 BST meeting) 
Administrative Regulation 

 

 
RETENTION OF STUDENTS IN GRADES K - 8 

1. 

2. 

In alignment with the Building Team processes in a given building (Multi 
Tiered System of Support or MTSS), a teacher or parent requests support to 
address a pattern of concerning academic or social/emotional behavior for a 
given student.  

3. 

The building team, with the student’s teacher, reviews existing data, 
including individual performance and class comparisons. 

4. 

Team members or district support personnel observe the student in multiple 
school settings at different times of the day, recording information which 
includes relationships between the student’s performance and 
antecedents/results. 

5. 

Team members identify additional information and data needed to formulate 
an intervention plan, including data from parents when relevant, and 
improve the instruction to meet the individual student’s need. 

a. 

Once this data has been collected, the building team constructs a 
hypothesis for the root cause of the student’s difficulty and designs a plan to 
address this conclusion.  This plan must include 

b. 

specific concern(s); 

c. 

data used to define this concern; 

d. 

statement of the hypothesized root cause; 

e. 

specifics on strategies which will be delivered with fidelity; 

f. 

the mechanism/instrument that will be used to measure progress; 

g. 

the academic or behavioral outcomes which are appropriately 
anticipated; and  

6. The building principal meets with parent(s) to share information related to 
the plan. 

the adequate amount of time needed to determine the effectiveness 
of the intervention. 

7. The teacher and other service staff fulfill the plan as articulated by the 
building team, reporting progress to building principal and parent(s), 

8. 

and 
making adjustments as needed. 

9. 

If the student has not demonstrated anticipated improvement given 
adequate time, the building team may continue to collect data and refine the 
intervention plan or may determine other avenues of support are worthy of 
pursuit. 

If the Building Team eventually determines the root cause of the student’s 
difficulties is a developmental mismatch between the student and his or her 
chronological grade placement, the Building Team shall hold a meeting with 



parent(s) and, subsequent to this meeting, 

10. 

may submit a request to retain a 
student. (ENL students will not be retained on the basis of their language 
deficiency.  Decisions regarding promotion/retention of special education 
students will be made by a case conference committee and shall not be 
based on the existence of a disability alone.) 

a. 

Internal requests to retain must be submitted to the Instructional 
Leadership Department prior to January 31st of the year preceding the 
possible repeated grade.  The request must be accompanied with: 

b. 

an explanation of the additional factors to support this 
recommendation, including the hypothesized root cause of the 
student’s difficulty and the specific data used in the determination; 

c. 

the interventions, accommodations, and/or modifications align to 
the root cause when implemented and what resulted; and 

11. 

a proposal of how retention will address the root cause in a way 
promotion cannot. 

A member of the Instructional Leadership team will conduct a classroom 
visit during the month of February to learn more about what is being done 
in providing an instructional match for the student’s needs and will 
participate in a meeting with the building team and parent(s)

12. 

. 

13. 

In May of the year preceding the possible retention, requests for the 
retention of students will be approved or denied by the Instructional 
Leadership Department. 

14. 

In instances where a student is retained, a conference shall be held by the 
principal with the student’s parent/guardian to discuss the retention plan. 

 

Principals will discuss with Instructional Leadership instances of parental 
request for retention which occur with inadequate time to execute this 
process. 

When a student is achieving significantly below ability and/or grade level, the teacher or 
parent(s)/guardian may initiate retention procedures.  The following steps are to be 
completed (the time guidelines do not apply to late enrollees): 

PROMOTION AND RETENTION OF STUDENTS IN GRADES K-8 

 

 1) The teacher/parent or guardian fills out and completes an Academic 
Interventions Form.  

 2) The teacher/parent or guardian schedules a meeting with the principal to 
discuss the student's progress and to consider recommendations for 
additional academic interventions to meet the student’s individual needs.  

 
 3) The teacher and the parent(s)/guardian meet to discuss reasons for 

academic concern, and to agree upon specific interventions to remediate 
deficiencies.   



 
 4) The teacher, principal, and other appropriate persons are to review all 

available information and make a tentative recommendation concerning 
promotion/retention. This step is to be completed by May 1st. 

 5) A meeting with the parent(s)/guardian(s) and appropriate Elkhart 
Community Schools personnel shall be held to discuss the student's 
placement for the forthcoming year.  This discussion shall include available 
staff input, the student's ability, ISTEP+ test results, NWEA test results, 
grades, attendance, classroom performance, participation in required skill 
enhancement programs, and a review of the academic interventions that 
have been utilized. 

 
 6) For a student not receiving special education services, advancement to the 

next grade level will occur only upon the approval of the building principal.  
The principal shall make the final decision regarding grade placement for 
the forthcoming year in accordance with Board Policy IKE. Decisions 
regarding promotion/retention of special education students will be made 
by a case conference committee.   

 
 
March 23, 2004

 
 
 

October 24, 2017 

 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 1 of 15 
 
 
 

EMPLOYEES IN MISCELLANEOUS POSITIONS COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
 
The Board of School Trustees hereby adopts the following wage schedule for 
Employees to be effective for January 1, 2017.  In addition, the three percent (3%) 
employee contribution to PERF will be paid by Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

POSITION HOURLY 
 WAGE RANGE 

Assistant Supervisor of Transportation 23.31 – 28.78 
Transportation Trainer/Dispatcher 19.42 – 22.69 
Food Service Truck Driver 15.59 – 18.52 
Food Service Receiving/Supply 15.59 – 18.52 
Evening Supervisor of Building Services 20.44 – 25.16 
Food Service Training Specialist 17.66 – 24.74 
Food Service Bids & Commodity Coordinator 16.82 – 26.29 
Executive Chef & Culinary Event Coordinator 16.82 – 26.29 
Quality Assurance Coordinator 19.42 – 22.69 
Production Coordinator 19.42 – 22.69 
Transportation Route/Driver Coordinator 19.42 – 22.69 
Adult/Community Education Non-Contract Teachers 32.06 * 
Building Community Education Coordinator 27.14 – 33.93 
Radio Station Staff Announcer 9.15 – 13.01 
Radio Station Development Assistant 10.64 – 17.02 
School Security Officer 25.0030.00** 
Title I/Funded Pupil/Program/Parent Support Person 19.39 – 28.24 
High School Parent/Community Liaison 19.39 – 28.24 
District Translator 19.39 – 28.24 
Evening Events Supervisor 14.67 
Asst. Site Coordinator - 21st Century Community Learning Center  14.00 
After-School Community Education Organized Activities Leader 14.00 
After-School Community Education Organized Activities Assistant 9.39 
Deaf/Hard of Hearing Educational Interpreter 15.96 – 29.80 
Early College Data Specialist 24.00 – 27.43 
EACC Testing Specialist 24.00 – 27.43 
21st Century Community Education Program Manager 28.00 – 33.00 
*    Hourly rate based on .001 of the certified teacher’s base salary 
**   Effective August 1, 2017



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.12S/page 2 of 15 
 
 
POSITION YEARLY 
 SALARY RANGE 
Radio Station Manager 49,181 –73,067 
Radio Station Development Director 46,285 – 70,038 
Radio Station Business Account Manager  36,531 – 68,873 
Radio Station Program Director 36,531 – 56,204 
Radio Station Senior Reporter and Assignment Editor 31,559 – 46,210 
Radio Station Operations Manager 25,292 – 41,450 
Radio Station Morning Edition Host 28,704 – 45,184 
Radio Station Promotions Manager 29,523 – 43,928 
Radio Station Membership Manager 32,741 – 46,384 
Olweus Bullying Prevention Program Coordinator 42,242 – 57,151 
Assistant Supervisor of Building Services 54,504 – 68,130 
Adult and Community Education Program Manager 62,889 – 73,371 
Data Specialist 37,247 – 58,531 
Digital Communication and Data Support Specialist 37,247 – 58,531 
School Psychologist Intern 36,230 
21st Century Community Learning Center Coordinator 2,500 (per semester) 
 
An hourly employee who is required to report to work to respond to an emergency 
outside of the employee’s regular work hours will be paid for a minimum of two (2) 
hours. 
 
June 27, 2017October 24, 2017 
 























What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the name of 

the granting agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

What is the 

amount

applied for?

How will the grant funds be used 

and who will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be used

to support the district vision, focus, and goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

Write for 

Change book 

project

The little BIG Idea 

Grant

Elkhart Community 

School - Student 

Services

Tessa Sutton $2,000 Grant funds will be used to 

1. involve students and community 

members in writing their own stories. 

2. purchase 100 book kits.

2. promote awareness and dialogue 

among the wider community and will 

create spaces for reflection and 

community building. 

3. work with teachers to collect stories, 

illustrate, and publish a community 

book to share community voices in 

places like Middlebury, Nappanee, 

Elkhart, Millersburg, Bristol, New Paris 

and Goshen. 

The Write for Change story collection 

Campaign begins in October. Books 

would be ready for the community on 

March 22, 2018 at the Elkhart Culture 

Series: Continuing the Conversation.

Tessa Sutton will oversee the 

management of the grant.

Integrate language and visual arts and culture, which 

are pillars in Elkhart community. Students and staff 

leverage the stories around them on identity and 

difference to build a more inclusive community.

One hundred book kits at $20.00 = 

$2000.00

Skating Around Roller Skating 

Foundation

Bristol Elementary 

Physical 

Education

Mike Pflugner $500 All Money will go towards the rental of 

Quad Skates for 4 weeks from 

SkateTime - Tami Lapp will manage 

the funds that are granted.

Roller Skating is a curriculum based aerobic 

experience. It promotes lifetime activities and wellness 

that will last a lifetime. Plus students will love it. The 

goal is to introduce an activity that will last a lifetime.

All money will be directed toward the rental 

costs. ($3200)

Skating for Life DonorsChoose Bristol Elementary 

Physical 

Education

Mike Pflugner $500 Money will be used to help fund 

Skatetime Roller Skating Program at 

our School. Tami Lapp oversee the 

grant that is funded.

Roller Skating is a curriculum based aerobic 

experience. It promotes lifetime activities and wellness 

that will last a lifetime. Plus students will love it. The 

goal is to introduce an activity that will last a lifetime.

All Money will go towards the rental cost of 

Quad Skates for 4 Weeks.

Page 1 of 2



What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the name of 

the granting agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

What is the 

amount

applied for?

How will the grant funds be used 

and who will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be used

to support the district vision, focus, and goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

Culture Elkhart 

Culture Series

Elkhart Community 

Foundation

District Office - 

Student Services

Tessa Sutton $5000 

(Sponsorship 

request)

Funds will be used to 

STAGE FOR CHANGE

STAGE FOR CHANGE

. Storytelling and docudrama for 

Change, an interactive program to help 

students and individuals write and 

center their own personal narratives on 

identity and difference, an eight-month 

program will help students explore 

stories in their life that can affect 

change, inspire, connect, and 

challenge their peers. The student and 

community group will Culture Series: 

Continuing the Conversation event and 

in the community.

CONTINUING THE CONVERSATION

. Stage for Change Human Rights - 

Student, staff, and community 

docudrama presentation of anonymous 

stories and Keynote Speaker: 

Henriette Ngenga -- Rwandan Survivor

HUMAN RIGHTS FILM/THEATER

. Film/theater that promote the 

importance of Universal Declaration of 

Human Rights: 

September - Hotel Rwanda - 

Community

November - Hotel Rwanda - High 

Schools

Literacy, Inclusion, Collaboration, and Engagement CONTINUING THE CONVERSATION

Stage for Change - Student, staff, and 

community docudrama presentation of 

anonymous stories and Keynote Speaker: 

Henriette Ngenga -- Rwandan Survivor

$6500.00 Stage for Change 

- $500.00 Old National Bank

- $2000.00 Goshen College

- $2000.00 Elkhart Community Schools

$2000.00 Need

$2500.00 Continuing the Conversation 

Speaker

- $2500.00 Elkhart Education Foundation 

$0.00 Need

FILM/THEATER/MINI FAIR

Film/theater that promote the importance of 

Universal Declaration of Human Rights: 

September - Hotel Rwanda – Community – 

$125.00 Movie license

November - Hotel Rwanda – Secondary 

Schools – $500.00 Movie licenses

January – World Café and Community 

Champions Mini Fair in conjunction with 

community agencies, students, and Goshen 

College – $2000.00

$2625.00 Need

MARCH – ELKHART COMMUNITY 

SCHOOLS – CONTINUING THE 

CONVERSATION HUMAN RIGHTS DAY $ 

1700.00

Page 2 of 2









 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  October 24, 2017 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Consent Agreement – We recommend the approval of three consent agreements regarding unpaid 

time. 

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2017-18 school year: 

 

Julia Johnson    Roosevelt/Media Specialist 

 

c. Adoption Leave – We recommend an adoption leave of the following employee: 

 

Amanda Balk    Bristol/Grade 5 

Begin:  10/25/17 p.m.   End:  11/14/17 

 

d. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Teresa Hill    Central/Language Arts 

Began:  8/13/12    Resign:  12/21/17 

 

Jason Miller    Pierre Moran/Behavior Support 

Began:  9/22/16    Resign:  10/25/17 

 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following classified employee:   

Heidi Compton   Building Services/Custodian 

Began: 10/12/92   Resign: 1/9/18 

     25 Years of Service  

  

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees: 

Mayra Adame    Monger/Food Service 

Began: 8/4/16    Resign: 10/12/17  



 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

John Smerekanich Jr   Transportation/Mechanic II 

Began: 11/19/12   Resign: 10/17/17 

 

Melody Riley    Beardsley/Food Service 

Began: 8/17/17    Resign: 10/20/17 

 
  
 

c. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employees: 

 

 

Dionne Acker    Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 8/14/17    PE: 10/10/17 

 

Mayra Aguilar Zavala   Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/16/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Bianca Avendano   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 5/17/17    PE: 10/4/17 

 

Debra Bice    Pierre Moran/Secretary 

Began: 8/1/17    PE: 9/26/17 

 

Richard Choler   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Nathashia deJesus    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Shawnna Dickerhoof   Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 8/16/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Miranda Doolittle   Central/Food Service 

Began: 8/16/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Kaley Foley    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/18/17    PE: 10/13/17 

 

Anita Frankenberger   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 5/24/17    PE: 10/9/17 

 

Erica Gaffney    Bristol/Speech Therapist 

Began:  8/15/17    PE: 10/11/17 

 

Victor Gaucin    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Tammie Gonzalez   Osolo/Food Service 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Jocelyn Gordan   Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 8/14/17    PE: 10/9/17 

 

Katie Gotfried    Tipton/Occupational Therapist 

Began: 8/15/17    PE: 10/10/17 

 

Robert Gray    Hawthorne/Food Service 

Began: 8/18/17    PE: 10/13/17 

 

Gloria Hudak    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Cheserie Huston   Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Sheila Jackson    Woodland/Food Service 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Stefani Jenkins    Osolo/Food Service 

Began: 8/14/17    PE: 10/9/17 

 

Betty Kline    Central/ Secretary 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Lindsay Lucchese   Central/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Immeseya Malone   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/21/17    PE: 10/16/17 

 

Natalie Murphey   Eastwood/Social Worker 

Began: 8/14/17    PE: 10/9/17 

 

Elizabeth Niemeyer   Pinewood/Food Service 

Began: 8/23/17    PE: 10/18/17 

 

LaDeana Owens   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Rochelle Peete    Pierre Moran/Food Service 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Beth Porter    Feeser/Food Service 

Began: 8/16/17    PE: 10/11/17 

 

Heather Rhodes   Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 8/14/17    PE: 10/9/17 

 

Angel Rupard    North Side/Food Service 

Began: 8/16/17    PE: 10/11/17 

 



 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Brittney Shipe    Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/16/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Teresa Sims    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

Reesha Smith    Central/Food Service 

Began: 8/16/17    PE: 10/11/17 

 

Leann Sullivan    Memorial/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/16/17    PE: 10/11/17 

 

Joann Williams   Bristol/Secretary 

Began:  8/01/17    PE: 9/26/17 

 

Nakia Williams   Memorial/Food Service 

Began: 8/23/17    PE: 10/18/17 

 

Amber Young    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/17    PE: 10/12/17 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	Minutes - Work Session October 10 2017
	Minutes - Regular Meeting October 10 2017
	Minutes - Work Session October 17 2017
	Gift Acceptance - ECS
	Gift Acceptance - Riverview
	Gift Acceptance - Roosevelt
	Gift Acceptance - Student Services
	Balance Sheet - September
	2018 Budget Form 4
	2018 Budget Resolution To Adopt CPF
	2018 Budget Resolution To Adopt Bus Replacement
	Transportation Levy Appeal
	2018 Budget Resolution To Reduce Proposed Budget
	2018 Budget Tax Neutrality Resolution
	Prescription Drug Management Services Memo
	Extra Curricular Purchase Memo to Board
	Extra Request from West Side
	Fundraiser Requests
	Medical Plan Experience September 2017
	Recommendation for Award
	Response To Bids-JCL
	Administrative Regulation IKE
	Board Policy 3422.12S
	Advanced Life Science - Animals
	Natural Resource Management
	Conflict of Interest - Cripe
	Overnight Trip Requests
	Grants Submission Requests
	Conference Leave Requests - Perkins
	Conference Leave Requests
	Personnel Report

